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FAIR HAVFN BOARD OF EDUCATiON
224 Hance Road

Fair Haven, New Jersey 07704-319S
KATHLEf’ C.HONI\ F.\ (712) 747-7441 i R PM ROPFRIiFIfl

BUSINESS B’IINISTRA1OR(732) 7472294
(732)747-41324

November 21, 2011

Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Fair Haven Borough Board of Education
County of Mon mouth
Fair Haven, NJ

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Fair Haven School district of the fiscal year ended June30, 2011 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness andfairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board ofEducation. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in allmaterial respects and is reported in a manner designed to present faIrly the financial position andresults of operation of the various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary toenable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’sorganization chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purposefinancial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical sectionincludes selected financial and demographic information generally presented on a multi-year basis. TheDistrict is required to undergo and annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the SingleAudit Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (‘0MB’) Circular A-133, “Audits ofStates, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations”, and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-040MB. “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid” Informationrelated to this single audit including the auditor’s report on compliance and on internal control overfinancial reporting and findings and questioned costs are included in the single audit section of thisreport

1. REPORI!LNTIIYAND ITS SERVICES. The Fair Haven School Dstrict is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASS) as established by GASB Statement No 14. All funds and account groups of the District
ar included in this report The Fair Haven Board of Education and its two elementary schools
constitute the District’s reporting entity.



Average Daily Enrollment
Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2010-2011 1015 (.09)
2009/10 1016 2.63
2008/09 990 (103)
2007/08 1015 0.50
2006/07 1010 ‘ 1.84
2005/06 992 1.74

2, ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK: Fair Haven is close to 100 percent developed no
increase in tax base can be anticipated. However enrollment should continue to increase due to
turn-over in homes wherein the new owner has several school-age children compared to the
previous owner. Realtors continue to hold Fair Haven’s educational system in high regard. Per-
pupil costs remain below the state average.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: During the 2010-11 school year, the district worked to improve our
communication with parents and the community at large by upgrading our district website. In
addition, the district continued to increase technology by purchasing several SmartBoards,
projectors, and E!mos for individual classrooms at the elementary and middle school as well as
Pads for each Media Center. Training was provided to teachers in order to maximize the use of

this teaching technology.

The Fair Haven School District focused staff development efforts on improving our language arts
instruction at grades K-8. To this end, we employed two staff developers from Columbia
Teachers College to work with teams of teachers at both schools throughout the year. These
staff developers also did demonstration lessons for staff thereby following our philosophy of
job-imbedded professional development.
A revised report card for grade 8 was implemented during the 2010-11 school year. The
development and implementation of this standards-based report card took many hours of workon the part of the Grade Reporting Committee which included teachers, administrative staff andcommunity members. This is the final phase of the standards-based report card
implementation.
The district, in conjunction with the Fair Haven Education Foundation and the PTA, worked hard
to maintain and expand the educational programs in the Fair Haven Public Schools. The PTA
continued to supplement the educational program in our schools through high-quality,
curriculum driven assemblies, classroom libraries and other student-centered materials. Duringthe 2010-2011 school year, the Fair Haven Education Foundation supported a seventh grade
grant-writing program whereby every student developed and submitted a grant. As a result ofthis initiative, the staff and students now enjoy a “virtual library” of resources housed on our
district website as well as additional healthy lunch choices in our cafeteria.
The Fair Haven students scored above State averages on the State-mandated NJ ASK
assessments and continue to demonstrate high performance upon entering Rumson-Fair HavenRegional High School. In addition, the Fair Haven Schools once again were one of only five
districts named as a “Model District for World Language Instruction” during the 2010-11 schoolyear.
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4, INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: The management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of
the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in the conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognized that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived; and (2> the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.
As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable lawsand regulation related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluationby the District management.
As part of the District’s single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine theadequacy of the internal control system, including reporting related to the federal and statefinancial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the Distinct has complied with theapplicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, this District
maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the
voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, the
Special Revenue Fund and Debt Service Fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the
capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amounts
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section
An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District’s accounting records reflect generally
accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Account Standards Board
(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account
groups. These funds and account groups are explained in “Notes to Financial Statements”
Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMIN1STRAT1ON: At June 30, 2011, the District’s outstanding debt issues include
$8,905,000 of general obligation bonds and $129,454 of loans payable. The General Obligations
Bonds which were voter approved were issued in July 1996 and 2005. The proceeds of this bond
issue were placed in the District’s Capital Projects fund to provide funds for construction of
additions and renovations to both elementary schools, in April 2005. the District issued
03,4 5,000 of School RefLnding Bonds to reOnance a pcrtion of the July 1996 issue. In August
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1993 the District issued NJEPA loans in the amount of $650,000. The proceeds of this bond
issue were placed in the District’s Capital Projects fund to provide funds for reroofing, window
replacement and paving repairs and both schools.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state
statute as detailed in “Notes to Financial Statements”- Note 2. The District has adopted a cash
management plan, which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected
from lass under the provisions of the Government Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUPA”). GUPAwas enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failedbanking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public fundsoniy in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordancewith the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance including, but not limitedto, general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive, hazard and theft insurance on
property and contents and fidelity bonds.

10. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit —State statutes require an annual audit by
independent certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants, The accountingfirm of Robert A. Hulsart and Company was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting therequirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirementsof the Single audit Act of 1984 and the related 0MB Circular A-133 and state treasury CircularLetter 04-04 0MB. The auditor’s report on the general purpose financial statements andcombining and individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section ofthis report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in thesingle audit section of this report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: We would like to express our appreciation to the members ofthe Fairs Haven Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to thecitizens and taxpayers of this School District and thereby contributing their full support to thedevelopment and mantenance of the financial operation. The preparation of this report couldnot have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial andaccounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

i___j iaa—Kathleen Cronin V&ery P.e
Superintendent Business Administrator
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.P.A., R.M.A., P.S.A. (1959-1992) Te(ecopier:
ROBERT A. HULSART, C.P.A.. R.M.A., P.S.A. (732) 280.8888 2807 Hurley Pond Road’ Suite 100
ROBERT A. HULSART, JR.,C.P,A., P.S.A.

e-mwl: Wa((. New Jersey 07719-1409
rah@rnonrnouth corn 732) 681’4990RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT, JR., C.P.A., P.S.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Fair Haven School District
County of Monmouth
Fair Haven, New Jerse

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business—type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining tund information of the Board of
Education of the Fair Haven School [)istrict. in the Count’ of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and
for the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011. xvhich collectively comprise the District’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fair
Haven Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance. Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require thatwe plan and perlorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arefree of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall financialstatement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects.
the respective financial position of the governmental activities. business—type activities, each major fund.and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Fair Haven Board of Education, in the County of
Monmouth State of New JLrse as ol June CO 2011 and the i espectix C LhangLs m fnanc al posItion andcash flows, x’. here applicable, thereof lou the sear then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America,

In accordance with (Jm’eI7nnLIn - Inditing Sudia/urcL, we have also issued our report dated
November 21. 2011. on our consideration of the Fair Haven Board of Education’s internal control overfinancial reporting and our tests ol its compliance with certain rovisions of laws, reculations. contractsand grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of this report is to describe the scope of our

5) inc-n f merna I control ooet- mane al reportine and compliance aim the results or that testine. and notto pros ide r.n opinion on the internal control over ttnaneaI reporting or on compliance. This report is anintecral part of our audit performed in accordance ss ith Gorer;mci;i -iifdiiing Standard’ and should he
considered in assessing the results of our and it,



The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 12
through 1 8 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. Ho ever, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Fair Haven Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining and
individual fund financial statements. long-term debt schedules. and statistical information are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion. are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical information have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-I 33, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.’ and ev Jersey
OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid
respectively, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Respectfully submitted.

ROBERT A. HULSART AND COMPANY

Robert A. Hulsart
Licensed Public School Accountant
N’ 322
Robert A. Ilulsart and Company

November 21, 201!
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CERTIFIED F’UBLIC ACCOLINT4.VTS

ARMOUR S. HULSART, C.P.A.. R.M.A., P.S.A. (1959-1992) T&ecopier:
ROBERT A. HULSART. C.P.A., R.M.A.. P.S.A. (732) 280-8888 2807 Huhey Pond Road’ Sutte 100
ROBERT A. HULSART. JR..C.P.A., P.S.A.

ernaiI: Wall, New Jersey 07719-1409
rah@rnonrnouth corn (732) 681-4990RICHARD J. HELLENBRECHT. JR., C.P.A.. P.S.A.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING ANI) ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GO VERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

K-i

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

Fair I laven School District
County of Monmouth
Fair Haven. New Jersey

We have audited the general-purpose linancial statements of the I3oard of Education of the Fair
Haven School District, in tile County of Monniouth. State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30. 2011. and have issued our report thereon dated November 21. 2011. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America: the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gorer,iii,e,ii .-lu(IiIiIlg Sta,idurds. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance. Department of Education. State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fair Haven Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures lbr tile purpose
ol expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for tile purpose of expressing an opinion onthe ef’fectiveness of the- Fair Haven Board of Educations internal control oer financial i-eporting.
AccordinglY, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fair Haven Board of Education’sinternal control o er inane iai reportine.

A (let,ctenst in into/mel control exits when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or eniployces. in the normal course of perlorming their assigned lunctions, to prevent ordetect and correct misstatements on a timeR basis. A material tieakncsv is a deficiency, or combinationo dehcencies. in ntcrnai control, such that there is a reasonable posshi I itv that a material mssiatemcntol thL Dstr LI lie “ia staid tents w t’l m he preseniLd r deteLted an I c ‘rieLted on i ttnlLl\ hais
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting as for the limited purposedescribed in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies ininternal control that might he significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identit\r andeficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. asdefined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fair Haven Board of Education sgeneral-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. we performed tests of itscompliance with certain provisions of laws. regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliancewith which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of general-purpose financialstatement amounts. Hoever, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not anobjective of our audit and. accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our testsdisclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government itidiling Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance.Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management.the Fair Haven Board of Education, the Ne Jersey State Department of Education and other state andfederal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used byanyone other than these specified parties.

Robert A. Hulsart
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 322
Robert A. Hulsart and Company

November 21. 2011
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FAIR HAVEN PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT

BOROUGH OF FAiR HAVEN

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The discussion and anal sis of Fair Haven Public School District’s financial performance
provides an overall re iew of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011 The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District’s financial performanceas a whole: it should he read in conjunction with the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report’s (CA FR)Letter of Transmittal which is found in the Introductory Section, and the School Board’s financial
statements found in the Financial Section and the notes thereto.

Financial Highlights

Key Financial highlights for the 201 0.20 11 fiscal year are as follows:

General revenues accounted for $ 13.536.246 in revenue or 97% percent of all revenues. Programspecific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capitalgrants and contributions accounted for $412,797 or 3% percent to total revenues of $13,949,043.

• Total assets of governmental activities increased by $93 1.670.

• The School District had $13,017.373 in expenses; only $412,797 of these expenses vas offset byprogram specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily propertytaxes) of$ 13,536,246 were adequate to provide for these programs.

• The General Fund had $12,582,488 in revenues and $11 ,962,404 in expenditures. The GeneralFund’s balance increased $620,084 over 201 0. This increase was anticipated by the Board of
Education.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.These statements are organized so the reader can understand Fair Haven Public School District as afinancial whole, an entire operating entit . The statements then proceed to provide an increasinglydetailed look at specific financial activities.

The .Sialt’,nei,i of iV’i A,s.veis and S!aIc’inciit o/1ci/viiie,s provide information about the activities ofthe whole school district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District’s finances and aongerterm x iew of those finances. Fund financial statements pros ide the next le el ofdetail. For
governmental funds, these statements tell how sei-vic Cs were financed in the shortterrn as well as whatremains for future spending. In the case of Fair Haven Public School District, the General Fund is themost significant fund. w ith the Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project’s Fund also ha. ingsgndicance.
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Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) (Continued)

The School Board’s auditor has provided assurance in his Independent Auditor’s Report, locatedimmediately preceding this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statementsare fairly stated. A user of this report should read the Independent Auditor’s Report carefull to ascertainthe level of assurance being pros ided for each of the other parts of the Financial Section.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provideprograms and activities, the view of the School District as a hole looks at all financial transactions andasks the question. ‘Flow did we do financially during the 20 10-201 1 fiscal year?” The Statement of NetAssets and the Statement of Activities helps answer this question. These statements include all assets andliabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sectorcompanies. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year’s revenues and expensesregardless of when cash is received or paid.

These txo statements report the School District’s net assets and changes in those assets. Thischange in net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, thefinancial positions of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may bethe result of man factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the SchoolDistrict’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition.required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided intoto distinct kinds of activities:

• Governmental activities— All of the School District’s programs and services are reported hereincluding, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plantfacilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

• Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recoverall the expense of the goods or services provided. The Food Sei’vice Enterprise Fund is reported as abusiness activity.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the School District’s major (all) funds begins on Exhibit A—I . Fund financialreports provide detailed inftrmation about the School District’s major funds. The School District usesmany funds to account Gr a multitude of financial transactions. I lo ever. these fund financial statementsFocus on the School Districfs most significant funds. The School District’s major governmental fundsare the General Fund. Special Re enue Fund. Capital Projects Fund and J)eht Service Fund.
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Governmental Funds

The School Districfs acti ides are reported in Governmental Funds. which focus on how mone\flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future
ears. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting. which

measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be conk erted to cash. The GovernmentalFund statements provide a detailed short-term vie\ of the School District’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental Fund information helps you determine
hether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs. The relationship (or differences) bet een governmental activities (reported in theStatement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and Go ernmental Funds is reconciled in thefinancial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The Enterprise Fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities: therefore, thesestatements are essential lv the same.

The School District as a Whole

Table I provides a summary of the School District’s net assets comparisons of fiscal year 2011with 2010.

Table I
Net Assets

2011 2010
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 4.252.733 3.596.379Capital Assets. Net JL77$ 12,02i4

Total Assets $ 1 5,973,171 1 5,623053

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 8,727,924 9,369,706
Other Liabilities 2.905,569 2.850.762

Total Liabilities $1 633.493 12,220,468

Net Assets
lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt S 2.686.284 2.411.927Restricted 1,682,746 1,098.272Unrestricted (2Q052) (j97,614)

Total Net Assets $ 4,339,978 3,402,585
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[able 2 shos the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2011 Revenue and expense comparisons
to fiscal year 2010.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

2011 2010
Revenues
Program Re enues
Charges for Services $ 123,53 I 57,855
Operating Grants and Contributions 350.245 296.388

General Revenues
Property Taxes 12,568.850 12,103.01 7
Grants and Entitlements 945.989 1.282.495
Other 214j 67,347

Total Revenues 14.010.031 13.807.102

Program Expenses
Instruction 5.135.016 7,086.583
Support Services

Pupils and Instructional Staff 1.559.366 1.553. 1 82
General Administration. School Administration,

Business 4,006.073 2,504,694
Operations and Maintenance of Facilities 1.489.573 1.356.341
Pupil Transportation 83.950 187,110

Interest on Debt 43 7.459 503,622
Food Service 55,265 60.835
Unallocated Depreciation
Total Expenses 13.072.638 13,658.021

Adjustment for Transfers Jj$,854)

Increase in Net Assets $ 937.393 9,773)

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in Ne Jersey creates the need to routinely seek voter
approval for the School District operations, Property taxes made up 90% percent of revenues for
governmental activities for the Fair Ha en Public School District thr tiscal year 2011 The Districfs totalrevenues ere $13,949,043 for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011. Federal. state. local grants and other
local revenues accounted for another 10%.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s busmess—type acti ities (food service program) were comprised of
charges for services and federal and state reimbursements.

• Food service revenues exc.eeded expenses by $5,714.
Charces tbr sers ices represent S53,XSO ol’ revenue, This represents amount paid by patrons for Jaii
fbod ser ices.
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Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and
.trants offsetiing those services.

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the
interaction between teacher and student. including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content
and process of teaching to students. including curriculum and staff development.

General adrn inistration. school administration and business include expenses associated with
adni inistrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds. buildings
and equipment in an effective working condition.

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning. research, development
and evaluation of support services, as well as the reporting of this information internally and to the public.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from
school, as well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Extracurricular activities includes expenses related to student activities provided h the School
District which are designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in school events, public
events, or a combination of these for the purposes of motivation. enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the paYment of interest and
other related charges to debt of the School District.

Other includes unallocated depreciation and amortization.

The School Board’ Funds

Fhe School Board uses funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. The Fund’s
basic financial statements allows the School Board to demonstrate its stewardship over and accountability
for resources received from the Borough of Fair I laven’s taxpaYer’s and other entities, including the Stateof New Jerse and the Federal Government. Fhese statements also allow the reader to obtain more
insight into the financial workings of the School I3oard, and assess further the School Board’s overall
financial health.

As the School Board completed the fiscal year ended June 30. 201 1 . it reported a combined net
asset balance ol 54.339.978. The Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue E\penditures. and Changes
in Fund Balances of Go\ ernmental Funds to the Statement of Activities presents the reader with a detailed
explanation of the difYerences between the net change in fund balances and changes in net assets.

The School Board’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting
ftr certain transactions on a basis olcash receipts. disbursements and encumbrances. The mostsn1j nt tLI id ( I unO
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The School Board’ Funds (Continued)

Over the course of the ‘ear, the School Board revises its budget as it attempts to take intoconsideration unexpected changes in revenue and expenditures.

A schedule showing the School Board’s original and final budget compared with actual operatingresults is provided in the section of the CAFR, entitled Budgetary Comparison Schedules. The SchoolBoard generall did better than had been budgeted in its General Fund since it practices conservativebudgetary practices in which revenues are forecasted ver conservatively and expenditures are budgetedwith worst-case scenarios in mind.

The General Fund finished the fiscal year approximately $46i48 generated less than had beenbudgeted in terms of expenditures. Revenue-ise. the General Fund generated $8 10.449 more thanexpected.

The excesses ill be carried forward into the beginning fund balance for the 201 1-2012 fiscalyear and ill be used to fund the 2012-2013 fiscal budget to the extent of $129.91 I

Capital Assets

At June 30.2011, the School Board had approximately $1 1,720.738 million invested in a broadrange of capital assets. including land. buildings, furniture, vehicles. computers. instructional equipmentand other equipment. This amount is net of accumulated depreciation to date. Table 11 below shows thenet book value of capital assets at the end of the 2011 fiscal year.

Governmental
ActivitiesTable II

Capital Assets at June 30, 2011
Land

$ 439.000
Land Improvements 28.750Buildings I L176.975Machiner and Equipment 76.013

Total
$ 1L720.738

l)eht Administration

At June 30. 2011. the School District had $9,329,582 in outstanding debt. Of this amount5295. 28 is for compensated absences, $129,454 is for loans br school facilities, and the balance of58.905.000 is for bonds for ,chol construction.



Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The Fair Haven Public School I)istrict is in very good financial condition presentlx. Future
finances are not without challenges as the community continues to gro and state funding is decreased.

The Borough of Fair F1a en is primarily a residential community, w ith very few ratables. The
majority of revenues needed to operate the District is derived from homeowners through property tax
assessments and collections, which is voted h the residents annually.

For the 201 0-201 1 school year, the School Board was able to sustain its general fund budget
through the local tax levy, state education aid, federal aid. tuition and local re’enue sources.
Approximately 9% of the School Board’s general fund revenue is from State and Federal Aid. 90% oftotal revenue is from local tax levy. 1% is from miscellaneous revenue, which among other things
includes interest on deposits and tuitions.

The $(45,136) of unrestricted net assets for all governmental activities represents the accumulatedresults of all past years’ operations. It means that if the School Board had to pa off all bills today,including all of the School Board’s noncurrent liabilities such as compensated absences. the School Boardwould have a balance of $(45,136).

At this time, the most important factor affecting the budget is the unsettled situation with StateAid. ‘While State aid may’ he frozen. the District may experience growth in student population. The taxlev will be the area that will need to absorb any increase in budget obligations.

The School Board anticipates a slight increase in enrollment for the 2011-2012 fiscal ear. TheSchool Board cannot accurately forecast future enrollment, but most Districts in Monmouth County arefacing increased enrollments.

In conclusion, the Fair Haven Public School District has committed itself to financial excellencefor many years. In addition, the School District’s sstem for financial planning. budgeting. and internalfinancial controls are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management tomeet the challenge of the future.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with ageneral overvie of the School [)istrict’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for themone\ it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact Ms.Valery Petrone. School Business Adni inistrator/Board Secretary at Fair Haven i3oard of Education. 224Fiance Road. Fair Haven. N.I 07704
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - A



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRiCT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Exhibit A-i

JUNE 30, 2011

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Reserve Account - Cash

Capital Assets. Net
Total Assets

Governmental
Activities

$
2.571,487

1,638.693
23,782

11.720.738
15.954.700

Business-Type
Activities

16,886
1,885

18.77!

Total

16,886
2.573,372

1.638,693
23,782

11.720.738
15.973.471

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:

Debt Service
Capital Projects
Other Purposes

U nrestricted

Total Net Assets

2,686,284

17.302
361,197

1,304,247
(45.136)

2,686,284

17.302

361.197
1,304,247

16.084 (29.052)

16,084 4,339,978

Liabilities
Deferred Revenue 15,119 15.119
Accounts Pa able 68.268 2.687 70,955
lemporary Notes Payable 2,21 7,837 2,2 1 7,837
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year 60 1.658 60 1.658
Due Beyond One Year 8.727,924 8,727,924

Total Liabilities 11,630,806 2.687 11,633,493

$ 4,323,894

The accompan ing Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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l”IR I1V;’\ S(’IIOOl, I)ISTRI(’I’ Fxhihit it-i 22.

BALANCE SHEET

(;OVER’%’IIZN Iii. FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

,sSets

I ash and Cash qu ivalents

Intertund Receivable

Receisables From Other Governments

Special

(;eneral Revenue

Fund Fund

S l.27T73)
300.509

24,473 40.44o

1)ebt

Capitol Service

Projects Fund

3o7.434 7.3)12

2.506.568 -

‘lotal

(,overninental

Funds

1.662.475
300.569

2.57 l.487

lotal . \ssets 5 1.602.781 40.446 2.874.002 17.302 4.534,53

liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Defi.rred Revenue

temporary Notes Payable

Intertlind Pa able

iotal liabilities

2.217.837

294.968

2.512.805

68.268
15.119

2.217.837

- 300.569

- 2.601,793

lund Balance’

Restricted For

Lmergenc Reserve

Destanated Or Subsequent Years Lxpenditures

Lxcess Surplus

Lxeess Surplus

\laintenanee Resers e

Capital Reserve Account

C’omtuitted ‘In:

()thcr Purposes

Unassigned:
l)ht Ser icc
Capital Pro)ects

General Fund

‘lotal I’ uttd Balances

25(1.000

201.614
128.911

621.005

23.782

78.935

249,992
1.554,239

25(1,0(10

201,614
128.911

621.1)05

23.782

78.935

17.302 17,3)12

361.197 361.197

______________ _____________ _____________

249.992

361.197 7.302 1.932.738

Iota! I iabiiities and l’ttttd Balance S 1.6)12.781 40.446 2.874.0)12 17.302

1tnotints reported (Or em crnmctttal activities in

the Statcmettt of Net ..\ssets IA—I tare ditièrcnt

because’

Capital assets used it governmental activities

arc not tlniincial resources and therefOre arc

not reported iii the Funds I’he cost lithe

,iscis is 5 I 0.11)9.9 19 and the accumulated

depreciation r 55.188.453

1 oft—term 1 iahdittcs. including bonds payable. arc

tot line snd payable in the current period and

tttcrctorc nc not reported is liabilities in tIme

hi itds, (see Note 3
9.329510

$ 48.542

48.542

19.726

15.119

5.601
40,446

Net assets 9’ goserninental itivi)ics $ 4.323.894



F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

S
C

H
O

O
L

.
D

IS
T

R
IC

T

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
,

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
A

N
D

C
h
A

N
G

E
S

IN
F

U
N

I)
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

F
U

N
I)

S

F
O

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

D
JU

N
E

30
,

20
11

E
xh

ib
it

B
-2

S
he

et
I

o
f2

R
e

en
uc

s
lo

ca
l

N
ou

re
eN

:
i
.
o

ev
y

T
ui

tio
n

C
ha

rg
es

rs
4i

sc
en

an
eo

us
T

ot
al

L
oc

al
So

ur
ce

.s
St

at
e

So
ur

ce
s

ed
er

al
S

u
e
e
s

lo
ta

l
R

en
ue

N

SI
1,

55
3.

11
9

69
,6

51
15

,7
52

11
,6

38
,5

22
94

3.
96

6

12
.5

82
.4

88

4.
88

1
4.

88
1

33
8.

26
5

34
3.

14
6

C
ap

it
al

P
ro

je
ct

s

D
eb

t
S

er
vi

ce
F

un
d

1,
01

5.
73

1

5,
65

5
1.

02
1,

38
6

2.
02

3

1.
02

3,
40

9

T
ot

al
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l

F
un

ds

12
.5

68
,8

50
69

,6
51

26
,2

88
12

.6
64

,7
89

94
5.

98
9

33
8.

26
5

13
.9

49
.0

43

n
d

it
u
r
c
s

C
ur

re
nt

R
eg

ul
ar

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

Sp
ec

ia
l

E
du

ca
ti

on
In

st
ru

ct
io

n
U

t h
er

In
st

ru
ct

io
n

S
up

po
rt

S
cr

\
e
e

an
d

nd
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

C
os

ts
:

ui
tio

n
S

tu
de

nt
an

d
In

st
uc

tio
n

R
el

at
ed

S
er

vi
ce

s
Sc

ho
ol

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

S
er

vi
ce

s
G

en
er

al
an

d
B

us
in

es
s

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

S
er

vi
ce

s
Pl

an
t

(.
)p

er
au

on
s

an
d

\l
ai

n
te

n
an

cc
Pu

pi
l

1r
an

sp
or

ta
ti

on
P

na
ll

oc
at

ed
B

en
ct

it
s

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e:
P

ri
nc

ip
al

in
te

re
st

an
d

O
th

er
C

ha
rg

es
C

ap
it

al
O

ut
In

c
Io

ta
i

E
xp

en
d

tu
re

G
en

er
al

F
un

d

S
pe

ci
al

R
ev

en
ue

F
u
n
d

3,
90

2.
06

4
3.

90
2,

06
4

1.
04

3.
82

8
14

4.
76

6
1.

18
8.

59
4

44
.3

58
34

.3
58

20
4

20
4

1,
34

9,
04

2
19

3.
49

9
1,

54
2,

54
1

33
8,

80
6

33
8,

80
6

66
0.

75
9

66
0.

75
9

1.
48

9.
57

3
1.

48
9.

57
3

83
.9

50
83

.9
50

3,
03

8.
08

0
3,

03
8,

08
0

58
0,

29
3

58
0,

29
3

43
7,

45
9

43
7,

45
9

11
.7

40
4,

88
1

16
,6

21
11

.9
62

.4
04

34
3.

14
6

-
1,

01
7.

75
2

13
.3

23
,3

02



F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

S
C

H
O

O
L

D
IS

T
R

IC
T

E
xh

ib
it

B
-2

S
h
ee

t2
o
f2

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
O

F
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
, E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

A
N

D
C

H
A

N
G

E
S

IN
F

U
N

D
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

F
U

N
D

S

F
O

R
T

H
E

Y
E

A
R

E
N

D
E

D
JU

N
E

30
,2

01
1

S
pe

ci
al

D
eb

t
T

ot
al

G
en

er
al

R
ev

en
ue

C
ap

it
al

S
er

vi
ce

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l

F
un

d
F

un
d

P
ro

je
ct

s
F

un
d

F
un

ds

E
xc

es
s

(D
ct

ic
ua

ìc
y)

of
R

ev
en

ue
s

O
ve

r
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

62
0,

08
4

-

-
5.

65
7

62
5,

74
1

N
et

C
ha

nc
e

hi
F

un
d

B
al

an
ce

s
62

0,
08

4
-

-
5,

65
7

62
5

.7
41

Fu
nd

B
al

an
ce

Ju
ly

1
93

4,
15

5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

36
1,

19
7

11
,6

45
1.

30
6,

99
7

Fu
nd

B
al

an
ce

Ju
n
e3

0
$

1,
55

4.
23

9
-

36
1,

19
7

17
,3

02
1.

93
2,

73
8

T
he

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g
N

ot
es

to
F

in
an

ci
al

S
ta

te
m

en
ts

ar
e

an
in

te
gr

al
pa

rt
of

th
is

st
at

em
en

t.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 25.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS Exhibit B-3

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTiVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (From B-2)

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities (A-2) are Different Because:
Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
1-lowever, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount h which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in
the period.

Depreciation Expense

$ 625,741

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds.
but the repayment reduces long—term liabilities in the statement of net
assets and is not reported in the statement of activities. 580.293

Compensated Absences and Other Liabilities

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

31,572

$ 931,670

(305.936)

lhe accompanying Notes to I inancial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 26.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Exhibit B4

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 16,886
Accounts Receivable:

State 134
Federal 1,096
Miscellaneous 655

Total Current Assets 18,771

Total Assets $ 18,771

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 2,687

Total Liabilities $ 2,687

Net Assets
Unrestricted $ 16,084

Total Net Assets $ 16,084

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 27.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
Exhibit B-S

IN FUD NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Operating Revenues:
Local Sources:

Daily Sales Reimbursable Programs $ 46,752
Daily Sales Non-Reimbursable Programs 7,128

Total Operating Revenue 53,880

Operating Expenses:
Cost of Food 54,040
Miscellaneous 1,225

Total Operating Expenses 55,265

Operating (Loss)/Profit (1,385)

Non-Operating Revenues:
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 681

Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 6,418

Interest Revenue 9
Total Non-Operating Revenues 7,108

Change in Net Assets 5,723

Net Assets, July 1 10,361

Net Assets, June 30 S 16,084

ur g F 1 St ltLIuU1 re n irt l InN sterneIt



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Exhibit B-6

PROPRIETARY FUDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Enterprise
Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Daily Sales $ 53,880
Payments to Suppliers (52,051)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities 1,829

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
State Sources 681
Federal Sources 6,41 8

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 7,099

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest 9

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,937

Cash and Cash Equivalents July 1 7.949

Cash and Cash Equivalents June 30 $ 16,886

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Operating (Loss)/Proflt $ (1,385)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 2,521
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 693

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ 1,829

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

Exhibit B-7

29.

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Net Assets:
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims

and Other Purposes

Total Net Assets

Scholarship

Fund

$ 17,410

$ 17,410

$ 17,410

$ 17,410

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

156,716

156,716

156,716

156,716

the accompailving Notes to Einancial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 30.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Exhibit B-8

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30. 2011

Additions
Contributions
Total Contributions

Investment Earnings:
Interest

Net Investments Earnings

Total Additions

Deductions
Scholarship Payments
Unemployment Claims
Total Deductions

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of the Year

Scholarship
Fund

S -

25

25

25

753

753

(728)
18,138

$ 17,410

Unemployment
Compensation

Trust

17,613

17,613

46

46

17,659

50,804
50,804

(33,145)
189,861

156,716

The accompanyi.ng Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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31.

BOARD OF EDUCATION

FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Fair Haven School
District (District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GA SB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity:

The Fair Haven School District is a Type II district located in the County of Monmouth,
State of New Jersey. As a Type II district, the School District functions independently through a
Board of Education. The board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. The
purpose of the district is to educate students in grades K-8. The Fair Haven School District had
an approximate enrollment at June 30,2011 of 1,038 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District’s reporting entity, as set
forth in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Government Accountimt and Financial
Reporting Standards, is whether:
• The organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)
• The District holds the corporate powers of the organization
• The District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board
• The District is able to impose its will on the organization

• The organization has the potential to impose a financial/benefit/burden on the District
• There is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the District as a whole
excluding fiduciary activities such as student activities, Individual funds are not displayed but
the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by state and federal aid,
tuition and county tax levies, from business-type activities generally financed in whole or in part
with ftes charged to external parties.
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a gi\en function offset b program

revenues directly connected ith the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar

activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the

expenses and program revenues associated v. ith a distinct functional activity. Program revenues

include (1) c1arges- for services which report fees and other charges to users of the District’s

services and (2) operating grants and contributions. These revenues are subject to externally

imposed restrictions to these program uses. Tax le\ ies and other revenue sources not properly

included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary

funds. The New Jersey Department of Education (the “Department”) has elected to require New

Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major hind in accordance with the option

noted in GASB No. 34. paragraph 76. The Department believes that the presentation of all funds

as major is important for public interest and to promote consistency among district financial

reporting models.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement

Presentation

The financial statements of the District are prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The District’s reporting entity applies all relevant

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The government-wide

and proprietary fund financial statements apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)

pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November

30. 1989. unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. in

which case. GASB prevails.

The government- ide statements report using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination

of internal activity (between or within lI.inds). Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial

statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although internal activity is

not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are

recorded when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Count tax

revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied while grants are recognized when

grantor el igihilitv requirements are met. The Unemployment Trust Fund recognizes employer

and employee contributions in the period in which contributions are due.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when

they are both measurable and available Available means collectible within the current period or

soon enough thereafter to apply current liabilities. The District considers re\ enues to be

available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are

recerded sshen the related ftmd liability is incurred. excePt for lone—term pension and

compensated ahsences. which are reported as e.xpend itu.re.s in the ear due,
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement

Presentation (Continued)

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual includes Intergovernmental re enues. and

the county tax levy. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received.

Operating income reported in proprietar fund financial statements includes revenues

and expenses related to the primary continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating

revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for food sales and for services provided

to other governmental entities. Principles operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or

services and include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues

and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

D. Fund Accounting:

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance ith the principles of fund

accounting to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The

principles of fund accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting

purposes into funds or account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for

the resources. Each fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

An account group. on the other hand. is a financial reporting device designed to provide

accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because thex do

not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Funds are classified into three

categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into

separate “fund types”.

Governnicntal Fund Types

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is

used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required to be

accounted for in another fund.

ecial Revenue Fund: The District accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue

sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) that are legally

restricted to expenditures for specified purposes in the special re enue funds.

cpItalPrpiecjpd: the capital projects fund is used to account for all financial

resources to he used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other

than those financed b\ proprietary funds).

I )ebt Sei i I und I he dL 01 ie lund i used o Ieeount br the a umu hion UI

resources Ibr, and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance

major property acquisition. construction and improvement programs.

Proprietar Fund Type

Lcpi:iLtpsi: lu account Gr operations thai are financed and operated iii a manner

sim liar to private business eneerprises in •wh ich the. intent of the District is that the

costs of providing goods or services tc. the. i)isrric.t on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily throu.gh user charges.
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D. Fund Accounting (Continued):

Fiduciary Fund Types

Agçncy Fun rollapdStAcjvitiesFund: Agency funds are used to
account frr the assets that the [)istrict holds on behalf of others as their agent AgencY
funds are custodial in nature and do not un olve measurement of results of operations.

Trust and Aencv Funds: The trust and aencv funds are used to account for assets
held by the District on behalf of outside parties. including other governments, or on
behalf of other funds within the District.

pendable Trust Fund: An expendable trust fund is accounted for in essentially the
same manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and
basis of accounting. Expendable trust funds account for assets where both the
principal and interest may be spent. Expendable trust funds include Unemployment
Compensation Insurance and the following scholarship funds:

Charles F. Howard Scholarship Fund
Viola F. Sickles Memorial Fund

Michael R. Mekenian Science Awards
World Language Aard

Dr. Patricia B. Campbell Art Award

Agency funds are used to
account for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

E. Basis of Accounting:

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used fhr measuring financial position and
operating results of all governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency funds,
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized hen the become bothmeasurable and available. ‘Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determinedand “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to he used
to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period inwhich the fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt
which are recorded when due.

Ad \‘alorem (Propert > I axes are susceplible to accrual as under Ne .Jcrse State
Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in theamount voted upon or certified, prior to the end ot the school sear. fhe District records the
entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue isboth measurable and a\ ailable, The District is entitled to reeei e mone s under the established
pa ment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”.

fhe accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring linancial position and operating
resu its of proprietary ftmd types and none.xpe.ndable trust funds. U nder this method. rr.senues are
recorded in the aecounline period in which lhev are earned and exnense arc recorded at the timeliabilities are incurred.
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NOTE 1: Sumniarv of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Budets/Budgetarv Control:

Annual appropnated budgets are prepared in the spring of each ear for the general.special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the County office and arevoted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are preparedusing the modified accrual basis of accounting: the legal level of budgetary control is establishedat line item accounts within each fund. I .me item accounts are defined as the lowest (mostspecific) leel of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced inN.J.A.C. 6A:23-2.2(g)l All budget amendments must he approved by School Board resolution.Budget amendments during the year ended June 30. 2011 were insignificant.

The Public School Education Act of 1975, limits the annual increase of any district’s netcurrent expense budget. The Commissioner of Education certifies the allowable amount for eachdistrict but may grant a higher level of increase if he determines that the sums so provided wouldhe insufficient to meet the identified goals and needs of the district or that an anticipatedenrollment increase requires additional funds.

The Commissioner must also review every proposed local school district budget for thenext school year. He examines every item of appropriations for current expenses and budgetedcapital outlay to determine their adequacy in relation to the identified needs and goals of thedistrict. lf in his view, they are insufficient, the Commissioner must order remedial action. Ifnecessary, he is authorized to order changes in the local district budget.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended by transfers or additional appropriation offund balances by approval of a majority of the members of the Board. Amendments arepresented to the Board at their regular meetings. Each amendment must have Board approval.Such amendments are made before the fact. are reflected in the official minutes of the Board, andare not made after fiscal year-end as dictated by law. Individual transfers were not material inrelation to the original appropriations. All uncommitted budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

G. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments forthe expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.Open encumbrances in governmental hinds other than the special revenue fund are reported asreservations of fund balances at fiscal year end as they’ do not constitute expenditures orliabilities hut rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has receivedad\ ances are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation auihorit carries over into the neNt fiscal ear. An entrwill be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in thecertified budget by the outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal :ear end,
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

H. Short-Terni Interfund Receivables/Payables:

Short-Term interfund receivables/pavables represents amounts that are owed, other than

charges fbr good or services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due

within one year.

I. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses. ‘ hich benefit future periods, other than those recorded

in the enterprise fund are recorded as an expenditure during the ear of purchase.

Enterprise fund inventories are valued at cost. which approximates market, using the

first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments

made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30. 2011.

.1. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The I)istrict’s property, buildings and improvements. equipment. vehicles, furniture and

fixtures with useful lives of five years or more are stated at historical or estimated historical cost

and are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary Fund capital assets are

reported in its respective fund.

The District contracted with an outside service company to provide a report ith a

comprehensive detail of capital assets and depreciation Accumulated depreciation for fiscal

year 2011. fiscal year 2011 depreciation expense, total accumulated depreciation and hook values

were also provided. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset

value or materially extend the useful lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated

using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed. the cost and applicable

accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts. Estimated useful lives, in

years. for depreciable assets are as follo s:

Buildings and Improvements 20 50

Equipment and Vehicles 5 20

Furniture and Fixtures 5 20

Capital isset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:
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NOTE I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

.1. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Governmental Activities;
Capital Assets that are
Not Being Depreciated;

Land
Total Capital Assets Not

Being Depreciated

Building and Building
Site Improvements 1 78,345
Buildings & Improvements 14,496,682
Machinery & Equipment 1.795.164

Totals at Historical Cost 1&470,191

Less; Accumulated
Depreciation for
Site Improvements
Buildings and
Improvements

Machinery & Equipment
Total Accumulated

Depreciation

_______

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated. Net of
Accumulated Depreciation jj8774

Balance
Decreases June 30, 2011

439,000

439.000

178,345
14,496,682

_____

1.795.164

______

16,470,191

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 12,026,674 (305,936) 11,720.738

*DepreciaticMl expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:
L nal located

Balance
JuL 1,2010 Increases

AQ00

439.00()

(141.433)

(3,033.037)

(8.162) (149,595)

(286.670)
(Hi04)

(3,319,707)
l51)

(305.936)

______

(305.936) 11,281,738

$ 305.936
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

K. Accrued Salaries and Wages

Certain District employ ees. who provide services to the District over the ten—month

academic year, have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve-

month year. New Jersey statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained

in a separate hank account.

L. Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as

directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GAS B 16),

“Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to

services already rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the

employer and ernploee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance

with the District’s personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation.

The District’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the

full amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid b the District for the

unused sick leave in accordance with the District’s agreements with the various employee

unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is

recorded in the general long-term debt account group. The current portion of the compensated

absence balance is not considered material to the applicable fund total liabilities, and therefore is

not shown separately from the long—term liability balance of compensated absences.

M. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash, which has been received

but not yet earned. See note 1(e) regarding the special revenue fund.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due or when

resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following

year. For other long-term obligations. only that portion expected to he financed from expendable

a\ ailable financial resources is reported as a fund liabilit ofa governmental fund. The

remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the general long—term debt account group.

0. Fund Eguit

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary

funds froiii other funds. Grants, entitlements, or shared revenues which are restricted for the

acquIsition or construction of capital assets are also recorded as contributed capital. Reserves

L uit Pt p u 1w 1 a o app opt lahiL t i L\p no tm PR ‘ ieu tot

a specific future. use. I)esignatcd fund balances re.present plans fur future use of financial
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

P. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs.
The charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

Q. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal year 2010-2011 was based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents includes petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and
short term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Investments are stated at cost or amortized cost, which approximates market. The Board
classifies certificates of deposit, which have original maturity dates of more than three months
but less than twelve months from the date of purchase. as investments.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public
depositories located in New Jersey which are insured by the Federal Deposit insurance
Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the
United States that insures deposits made in public depositories. School districts are also
permitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of
public funds that exceed depository insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average
daily balance of collected public funds on deposit.

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75°/a
of the capital funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market
value at least equal to 100% of the amount exceeding 75%,

All collateral must he deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking
institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than
$25,000 .000.
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NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Board to purchase the following types of securities:

a. Bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations
guaranteed by the United States.

h. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank. Federal Home
Loan Bank. Federal National Mortgage Agency or any United
States Bank of Cooperatives which have a maturity date not greater
than twelve months from the date of purchase.

c. Bonds or other obligations of the school district.

All bank deposits and investments as of the balance sheet date are classified as to credit
risk by the following two categories described below:

As of June 30. 2011. the District’s deposits and investments are summarized as follows:

FDIC S 200,000
GUPDA 2.461,885

$ 2,66L8a5

As of .lune 30. 201 1. cash and cash equivalents and investments of the District consisted
of the following:

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Interest Bearing Checking Accounts L$79,714

Total $1,$79,714

The carrying amount of the Boards cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30.
2011 was $L879,714 and the bank balance was $2.66L885. Of the bank balance $200,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance and 52.461 .885 was covered by a collateral pool
maintained h the banks as required b\ Ne Jerse\ statutes.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits my not he returned to it. The District does not have a formal policy for custodial credit
risk
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NOTE 3: General Long-Term Debt

During the fiscal ear ended June 30. 2011. the following changes occurred in liabilities
reported in the general long-term debt account group:

Balance Balance Long-Term 2010-11
June 30, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011 Portion Payment

Corn pen sated
Absences
Payable $ 326.700 3L572 295.128 295.128

Loans Payable 169.747 40,293 129.454 87.796 41,658
Bonds Payable 9445Q

_____

540,000 8,905.000 5000 560,000

$ 9.94 L447 61 1,865 9329,582 8,727,924 601.658

A. Loans Payable

The Board has two loan program. a lo-interest facilities program loan issued on August
18, 1993. and a small project program loan, also issued on August 18, 1993. The interest rates
are 1.500% and 5.288%, respectively, and both loans are payable through July 13, 2013. These
loans were issued by the Ne Jersey Economic Development Authorit.

Principal interest Total
Year Ending June 30,

2012 $ 41.658 4.934 46.592
2013 43.127 3.016 46.143
2014 44,669 1,019 45,688

$ 129,454 8,969 138,423

B. jjaalile

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30.

2012 $ 560,000 366,305 926,305
2013 580.000 345.130 925,130
2014 605.000 322.434 927.434
2015 630.000 296.087 926.087
2016 660,00( 268.112 928,112
2017-2021 2,040.000 1.038.637 3.078.637
2022-2026 2.075,000 643.663 2.71 8.663
2(27-2030 1.755.000 186.788 1.041.788

$ 8,905,000 3,467.156 12,372,156

Bonds issued 4 5.2005 for S5,4 I frOOC at interest from 375 to 500’ maturina
15301 76\.\ ItO a ba.ianeL. of SI 120000 at June 30. 2(11

Bi ids IsNud 6 S/200 for S I O 000 ii intc t of 2 niat no 6 1 ‘2030 s kth i
halanee ‘ S6.’85000 it June 30, 2) I
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans

I)escription of Plans All required employees of the District are covered by either the

Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund hich have

been established h state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and

Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative C ode. all obligations

of both Systems x ill be assumed by the State of Ne’. Jersey should the S stems terminate. The

Division issues a publicl available financial report that includes the financial statements and

required supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may he obtained by writing to the Division

of Pensions and Benefits, P0. Box 295, Trenton. New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — The Teachers’ Pension and Annuit

Fund vas established as of January 1. 1955. under the provisions olN.J.S.A. l8A:66 to provide

retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost—sharing multiple—employer plan with a

special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the

State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing

employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the

professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners. and employees of the Department of

Education who have titles that are unclassified, professional aiid certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) The Public Employee’s Retirement

System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:1 5A to

provide retirement, death. disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members. The

Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is

mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,

municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the emploee is not required to be a

member of another state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions — The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set

by N.J.S.A. 43:1 5A and 43.3B. and N.J.S.A. I 8A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to

ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25 years of service. Retirement

benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally determined to be 1/55 of the

final average salary for each year of service credit. as defined. Final average salary equals the

average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest three ears’

compensation if other that the final three years). Members max seek early retirement after

achieving 25 ears of service credit or the max elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to

ten years of service in which case betwfits would begin the first da\ of the month aEer the

member attains normal retirement age. The IPAF and PERS provides for specified medical

benefits for members who retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or

under the disabilit provisions of the System.

Members are alwa s fully vested Ibr their own contributions and. alker three ears of

ser ice credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case

of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are entitled to fuill interest credited to the

members’ accounts.
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NOTE 4: Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation - During the year ended June 30, 1997, legislation was enacted
(Chapter 1 14. P.L. 1997) authorizing the Ne Jersey Economic Development Authority to issue
bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose of financing, in full or in part. the State of New
Jersey’s portion of the unfunded accrued liability under the State of New Jersey retirement
systems. Additional legislation enacted during the year ended June 30, 1997 (Chapter 115. P.L.
1997) changed the asset valuation method from market related value to full-market value. This
legislation also contained a provision to reduce the employee contribution rate by ½ of 1% to
4.5% for calendar years 1998 and 1999. and to allow for a reduction in the employee’s rate after
calendar year 1999. providing excess valuation assets are available. The legislation also
provided that the District’s normal contributions to the Fund may be reduced based on the
revaluation of assets. Due to recognition of the bond proceeds and the change in asset valuation
method as a result of enactment of Chapters 114 and 1 15. all unfunded accrued liabilities were
eliminated, except for the unfunded liability for local early retirement incentive benefits,
accordingly, the pension costs for TPAF and PERS were reduced.

Contribution Requirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A,
Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and NJ.S.A. 18:66, and requires
contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and employer
contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS provide for
employee contributions of 5 ½% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers are
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The actuarially
determined contribution includes funding for both cost-of—living adjustments, noncontributory
death benefits, and post-retirement medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a
non-contributing employer of the TPAF.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS
Annual Percentage Net

Year Pension of APC Pension
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/Il $ 0 100% 0
6/30/10 0 100% 0
6/30/09 126.899 100% 0

Three-Year Trend Information for TPAF (Paid On-Behalf of the District)

Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension

Funding Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30.11 $ 403,435 100% 0
6/30/10 386,764 100% 0
6/30’09 370.900 100% 0

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the State of New Jersey contributed
S403.435 to the TPAF for normal and postretirement benefits on behalf of the District. Also. in
accordance with N.J.S.A, I $A:66-66 the Stale of New Jersey reimbursed the District $419,603
d. uri.na the year ended June 30, 201 1 fbr the employer’s share of social security contributions thr
TPAF members. as calculated on their base salaries. This amount has been included in the
.uiu ilptn po tn flu I t itemc tS md tIi c rnbin n mod ind Jual lund and Kcowit gi oup
statements and schedu.i.e; as reven n.e and ex.pe.n.d.i.trrrc in ac.•o d•a.ncc with GA SB 2.4
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NOTE 5: Post-Retirement Benefits

P.L 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund

(TPAF) and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-

retirement medical benefits for those State employees ho retire after accumulating 25 years of

credited service or on a disability retirement. RE. 2007. c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the

funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate

funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical

benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010,

there ere 87.288 retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these

benefits is funded through contributions b the State in accordance with P1. 1994. c.62.

Funding of post—retirement medical premiums changed from a prefunding basis to a pay—as—ou—

go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P1. 1992 c. 126, which provides

free health benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a

board of education or county college with 25 ears of service. The State paid $126.3 million

toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14.050 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2010.

NOTE 6: Contingent Liabilities

it is the opinion of the school board officials that there is no litigation threatened or

pending that would materialR affect the financial position of the school district.

NOTE 7: Equity Balance

At June 30. 2011. the General Fund equity balance was as folloxs:

Restricted Fund Balance:
Maintenance Reserve $ 62 1.005

Emergency Reserve 250.000

Capital Reserve 23.782

Excess Surplus I)esignated for Subsequent Year’s
Expenditures 201,614

Excess Surplus 129,911

Committed Fund Balance:
Year End Encumbrances 78.935

[nassigned Fund Balance 252.849

$ 1,558.096

Reser ed for encumbrances represents outstanding purchase orders which will be rolled

into the 2011 20 1 2 budget and expended therefrom.

Reserved excess surplus represents a calculation under N.J,S,A. I 8A: 7F-7 which

identifies an amount ol surplus under the statute which must he restricted for use in the next

Nucceeln budget.
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NOTE 7: Equity Balance (Continued)

2% Calculation of Excess Surplus
2010-11 Total General Fund Expenditures Per the CAFR $ ii ,968696

Decreased by:
On-Behalf TPAF Pension and Social Security (81 4.057)

Adjusted 10-11 General Fund Expenditures $1 154,639

2% of Adjusted 2010-11 General Fund Expenditures $ 223,093

Enter Greater of Above or $250000 $ 250,000
increased b Al lo able Adj ustment 2.849

Maximum Unassigned Fund Balance $252 ,a49

Section 2
Total General Fund — Fund Balance i 6-30-I I $ 1,558.096

Decreased by:
Year-End Encumbrances (78.935)
Legally Restricted - Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures (201.614)
Other Restricted Fund Balances

Total Unassigned Fund Balance $ 3i2,160

Restricted Fund Balance — Excess Surplus $129,911

Section 3
Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus Designated for Subsequent
Expenditures $ 201,614

Excess Surplus 129.911

$331,525

Detail of Allowable Adjustment
Non—Public Transportation Aid $2,849

I)etail of Other Restricted Fund Balance
Maintenance Reserve $ 621,005
Emergenc Reserve 250.000
Capital Reserve

I otal Other Restricted Fund Balance $894,787
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NOTE 8: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft ot damage to, and

destruction of assets: errors and omissions: injuries to employees: and natural disasters.

Property and liability Insurance — 1 he District maintains commercial insurance coverage for

property. I iabi I itv. student accident and surety bonds.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District has elected to fund its

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement

Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment

Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State.

The District is hilled quarterly for amounts due the State. The folloing is a summary of District

contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the

ending balance of the District’s expendable trust fund for the current year:

District Employee Ending

Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reinabursed Balance

2008-2009 1.970 16,919 19.833 209.634

2009-2010 361 18.293 38.427 189,861

2010-2011 46 17.613 50.804 156,716

NOTE 9: Interfund Receivables and Pavables

There ere interfund balances on the balance sheet at June 30. 2011 as follows:

From To

General Fund $ 300.569

Special Revenue Fund 5,601

Capital Projects 294.968

$ 300569 300.569

NOTE 10: Capital Reserve Account

A Capital Reserve account was established by the Borough of Fair Haven Board of

Education by inclusion of $ 100 on September I. 2000 for the accumulation of funds fbr use as

capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained

in the fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.

Fund placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the

districts approed Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) and updated annually in the Quality

Assurance Annual Report (QAAR). I pon submission of the FRI P to the department. a district

max deposit funds into the capital reserve at any time upon board resolution through the transfer

ol uudesignated, unreserved general fund balance or of excess undesignated. unreser ed general

fund balance that is anticipated in the budget certified for taxes, Pursuant to NJAC. 6:23 ‘v

5 (d) . the balance in the account cannot at an rtme exceed the local support costs of

uuou pktd t rr’ ‘d I RI P
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NOTE 10: Capital Reserve Account (Continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30. 2011 . the District had actual interest earnings of
$15.

The activity otthe capital reserve for the July 1. 2010 to June 30. 2() II fiscal sear is as
follows:

Beginning Balance. July 1.2010 S 23.767
Interest Earnings

Ending Balance. June 30. 2011 $ 237

“A board of education may, by resolution of the board: transfer undesignated general
fund balance or excess undesignated general fund balance to the capital reserve account at any
time during the budget year: transfer funds from the capital reserve account to the appropriate
line item account for the funding of capital projects as contained in the districfs long-range
facilities plan: and transfer funds from the capital reserve account to the debt service account for
the purpose of offsetting principal and interest payments for bonded projects hich are included
in the district’s long-range facilities plan.” (N.J.S. A. I 8A:7G—3 1 c)

Withdrawals may not be used for current expense. Only funds in a capital reserve
account in existence prior to July 18. 2000 can he withdrawn before receiving approval of the
districfs 1,RFP and such withdrawals must be for the original purpose deposited. (N.J.A.C.
6:23A-5.1l).

“An capital reser e account in existence as ofJulv 18. 2000 shall be subject to EFCFA
and these regulations.” (N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5. 1(j)).

NOTE 11: Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The follo\ing methods and assumptions were used by the Fair Haven Board of
Education in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the combined balance
sheet for cash and cash equivalents are the fair values of those assets.

NOTE 12: Fund Balance Appropriated

General Fund Of the S 1.558.096 General Fund fund balance at June 30. 2011.
578.935 is reserve for encumbrances: $621 .(>05 is reserved for maintenance: $201 .614 is excess
surplus designated bar subsequent years expenditures in the 2011—201 2 budget: 523.782 has been
reserved in the Capital Reserve Account: 51 29.9 I I is reserved excess surplus: and $252.849 is
unreserved and undesignated.

Debt Scrice Fund The Debt Service Fund ftmd balance at June 30. 201 of $17302
is designated for subsequent year’s e.xpenditures.



48.

NOTE 13: Economic Dependency

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state

governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur. ma\ have an

effect on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 14: Significant Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009, the FASB issued FASB ASC 105, Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles, which establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification as the sole source of

authoritative generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC

105, the District has updated references to GAAP in its financial statements issued for the period

ended June 30, 2010. The adoption of FASB ASC 105 did not impact the District’s financial

position or results of operations.

in May 2009, the FASB updated ASC 855, Subsequent Events, which is effective for

reporting periods ending after June 15. 2009. ASC 855 establishes general standards of

accounting For and disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the

financial statements are issued, or are available to be issued. The District adopted the amended

sections of ASC 855 and it did not have an impact on the District’s financial statements. The

District evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 2011 through November

21, 2011.
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT Exhibit C-3 60.

REQU IRE P SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCiLIATiON

NOTE TO RSI

JUNE 30, 2011

Special
General Revenue

Fund FundSources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary) “revenues” from the budgetary
comparison schedules

$ 12,519.742 343,146

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures. and the related
revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the
current year. previously recognized br budgetary purposes. 66.603 15,000

State aid paYment recognized for budgetary purposes. not
recognized fbr GAAP statements until the subsequent year. (3,857) (15,000)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances governmental
funds.

S 12.582.488 343.146

Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total outflos” from the
budgetary comparison schedule

$ I L962.404 343,146

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
receied are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary’ ptirposes. hut in the year the -uppIies are received
for flnancial reporting purposes,

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of re enues.
expenditures. and changes in fund balances — governmental
funds.

S I ,Q62.404 313,146
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63.
FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Exhibit F-2

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues:
Interest Earned

Expenditures:

Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Interest Due General Fund

$

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

361,397

$ 361,397



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Exhibit F-2a

64.

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT

BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

KNOLLWOOD ROOF REPLACEMENT

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant

Bond Proceeds and Transfers

Total Revenues

Prior
Periods

$ 36.484
54.726
91,210

Current
Year Totals

36.484
54.726
91.210

Revised
Authorized

Cost

36,484
54.726

91,210

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical

Services
Construction Ser ices

Total Expenditures

2.245
73.016
75,261

2,245

73.016
75,261

3.000
88.210
91,210

Excess (Deficiency) of Reenues Over

(Under) Expenditures $ 15.949 15,949

Additional Project Information

Project N umber

Grant Date

Orieinal Authorized Cost

Additional Authorized Cost

Reiscd Authorized Cost

I 440-050-03-1231
1/6/2004

$ 91.210

$ 9L210

82.73%
9/112004

9/1 /2006

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Dale



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

Exhibit F-2b
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT

BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SICKLES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL-AIR CONDITIONING INSTALLATION

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revised
Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant $ 122,083 122,083 122,083
Bond Proceeds and Transfers 183,125 1 83,125 183,125
Total Revenues 305,208 305,208 305,208

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical

Services 23,693 23,693 25,240
Construction Services 273,179 273,179 279,968
Total Expenditures 296,872 296,872 305.208

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures $ 8,336

- 8,336

Additional Project Information
Project Number 1440-060-05-2000
Grant Date 2/16/2005
Bond Authorization Date 3/8/2005
Bonds Authorized $ 183,125
Bonds Issued $ I 83,125
Original Authorized Cost $ 305,208
Additional Authorized Cost

-

Revised Authorized Cost $ 305,208

Percentage Completion I 00sf
Original Target Completion Date 9/1/2006
Revised Target Compledon Date 9/1/2008



66.FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Exhibit F-2c

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT

BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

KNOLLWOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL-AIR CONDITIONING UPGRADE

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond Proceeds and Transfers
Total Revenues

Prior
Periods

$ 446,878
670,3l7

1,117,195

Current
Year Totals

446.878
670,317

1,117,195

Revised
Authorized

Cost

446,878
670,317

1,117,195

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical

Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

68,727
999,814

1,068,541

68,727
999,814

1,068,541

74,517
I .042,678
1,117.195

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures $ 48,654 48,654

Additional Project Information
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

1440-050-05-200
2/16/2005
3/8/2005

$ 670.317
$ 670.317
$ 1.117.195

$ 1.117,195

100
9/1/2006
9/1 !200X

Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date
Revised Tareet Completion Date



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
67.

Exhibit F-2d

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT

BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

KNOLLWOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL-ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

Revised

Prior Current Authorized

Periods Year Totals Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant $ 2,027,596 2,027,596 2,027.596

Bond Proceeds and Transfers 4,862,575 4,862,575 4,862,575

Total Revenues 6,890,171 - 6.890,171 6,890,171

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical

Services 470,683 470,683 506,428

Construction Services 6,169,213 6,169,213 6,383,743

Total Expenditures 6,639,896 - 6.639,896 6,890,171

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures $ 250,275 - 250,275

Additional Project Information

Project Number 1440-050-05-1000

Grant Date 2/16/2005

Bond Authorization Date 3/8/2005

Bonds Authorized $ 4.862.575

Bonds Issued $ 4,862,575

Original Authorized Cost $ 6,890,171

Additional Authorized Cost -

Revised Authorized Cost $ 6,890.171

Percentage Completion 99%

Original Target Completion Date 9/1/20006

Reised Target Completion Date 9/1/2008



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
68.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Exhibit F-2e

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT

BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

SICKLES ELEMENTARY SCHOOL-ALTERATIONS

FROM INCEPTION AD FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

_________________ ____________

Totals

1,616,281

_________________

2,424,422

________________

4.040,703

_________________

38,183

Additional Project Information
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

1440-060-05-1000
2/16/2005
3/8/2005

$ 2,424,422

$ 2,424,422

$ 4,040703

S 4,040,703

99%
9/1/2006
9/1/2009

Prior
Periods

Current
Year

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond Proceeds and Transfers
Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical

Services
Construction Services
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures

$ 1,616,281
2,424,422
4,040,703

229,128
3.773,392
4,002,520

S 38,183

Revised
Authorized

Cost

1,616,281
2,424,422
4,040,703

249.715
3.790,988
4,040,703

229,128
3,773,392
4,002.520

Percentage Completion
Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 71.

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Exhibit 11-3

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2011

Elementary Schools:
Knollwood/Sickles $ 8,588 94,211 79,135 23,664

Total All Schools $ 8,588 94,211 79.135 23,664



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
72.

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
Exhibit H-4

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance

July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 11,462 3,295,706 3,306,597 571

Total Assets S 11,462 3.295,706 3,306,597 571

Liabilities:
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 11,462 3,295,706 3,306,597 571

Total Liabilities $ 1 1,462 3,295,706 3,306,597 571
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 3-5

GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

Fiscal Year Prior Year Annual
Ended June 30, Refunds Miscellaneous Totals

2001 $ 17,920 17,920
2002 14,947 14,947
2003 16,114 16.114
2004 11,568 11,568
2005 2,920 2,920
2006 5,501 5,501
2007 18,915 18,915
2008 11,873 11,873
2009 25,831 25,831
2010 10,168 10,168
2011 11,237 11,237

Source: District Records
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT J-9

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTiONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected Within the
Fiscal Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy (a) Collections in

Ended for the Percentage Subsequent
June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years

2002 $ 7,550.905 7,550,905 100%
2003 8.064.656 8.064.656 100%
2004 8.414.713 8.414.713 100%
2005 8.653.918 8.653.918 100%
2006 9.762.210 9.762.210 100%
2007 10.602,216 10,602,216 100%
2008 11,127.203 11,127,203 100%
2009 11,644,650 11,644,650 100%
2010 12.103.017 12,103,017 100%
2011 12.568.850 12.568.850 100%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A1F form)

(a) School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a
municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted
upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT J-l1

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDEL DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percentage
of Actual

Fiscal Year General Net General Taxable
Ended Obligations Bonded Debt Value (a) PerJune 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding of Property Capita (b)2001 $ 4.399.000 4399.000 0.83% 7392002 4.219,000 4.219,000 0.78% 7072003 4,029.000 4,029,000 0.37% 6712004 3.829,000 3.829.000 0.35% 6362005 12.005,000 12,005,000 1.09% 1.9952006 11,495.000 11,495,000 1 .03% 1,9202007 11.005.000 11 .005.000 0.98% 1.8482008 10.500.000 10,500,000 0.92% 1.7752009 9.975,000 9.975.000 0.88% 1.6882010 9,445,000 9.445,000 0.82% 1,5912011 8.905,000 8.905.000 0.77% 1.500

Notes: Details regarding the Districts outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the FinancialStatements.

(a) See exhibit J6 for property tax data.
(b) Population data can be found in exhibit J-14.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DiSTRICT J-12 90.

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010

Estimated
Estimated Share of

Debt Percentage OverlappingGovernmental Unit Outstanding Applicable (a) DebtDebt Repaid with Property Taxes:
Borough of Fair Haven $ 6.416.935 100.000% $ 6.416.935Monmouth County General Obligation Debt 488,135.115 1.243% 6.067,519Subtotal. Overlapping Debt

12,484,454Fair Haven School District Direct Debt
9.269,454

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt
S 21.753,908

Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Monmouth CountyBoard of Taxation.

Debt Outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part. ith the geographic boundaries of theDistrict. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that isborne by the residents and businesses of Fair Haven. This process recognizes that, when considering theDistrict’s ability to issue and repa\ long-term debt. the entire debt burden borne b’ the residents and businessesshould be taken into account. Howeer. this does not impl\ that every taxpayer is a resident, and thereforeresponsible for repaving the debt, of each overlapping payment.

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes. the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxableassessed propert alues. Applicable percentages vere estimated by determining the portion of anothergovernmental unit’s taxable alue that is within the District’s boundaries and dividing it by each unit’s totaltaxable alue.
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DiSTRICT 92.

J- 14DEMOGRAPHiC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Personal Per Capita 1. nemp1o. mentYear Population Income çonal Income Rate2001 5.967 N/A 43,863 3.9%2002 6.007 N’A 43,387 5.6%2003 6.020 N/A 33.634 5.6%2004 6,019 N/A 46,545 4.7%2005 5,987 N/A 38.072 2.6%2006 5,956 N/A 52.499 3.0%2007 5.914 N/A 55.826 2.7%2008 5,910 N/A 57.353 3.5%2009 5.920 N/A 54.771 3.4%2010 5,937 N/A Unavailable 2.9%

Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published
by the US Bureau of Economic Analysis.

d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce De elopment.



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT J-15

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NiNE YEARS AGO

2011 2002

Percentage Percentage

of Total of Total

Municipal Municipal

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Information Not Available
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FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 97.

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

J-19

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

*School

Facilities
Project # (s)

Viola L. Sickles
SP 1440-050-05-2000
SP 1440-060-05-1000

27,300S

Knoliwood
SP 1440-050-05-2000
SP 1440-050-03-1231

59,642
18,411
26,386
65,672
49,742
28,940
65,695

126,975
55,942

129,005

626,410

Total
86,942
95,437
74,997
87,741
60,754
50,24

101,064
190,575
139,437
176,205

1.063,393

*School facilities as defined under EFCFA.

(N.J.A.C. 6A:26-1 .2 and N,J.A.C. 6A:26A- 1.3)

Year
2002

77,026
48,611
22,069
11,012
21,301
35,369
63.600
83,495
47,200

S 436,983Total School Facilities

Source: District Records



FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT 98.

iNSURANCE SCHEDULE
.1-20

JUNE 30, 2011

Coverage DeductibleSchool Package Policy - MOCSSIF/NJSBAIG
PropeiI

$ 300,000,000 5,000Electronic Data Processing
500.000 1.000Equipment Breakdo n

100,000.000 5,000Crime
100.000 500Comprehensive General Liabi lit)

6.000,000 I .000Automobile
6.000.000 1.000

Worker’s Compensation - MOCSSIF/NJ SBAIG 2.000,000

School Leaders Errors and Omissions - MOCSSIF/NJSBAIG 5.000,000 5.000
Surety Bonds - Selectie Insurance
Board Secretary/Business Administrator

200.000Treasurer of School Monies
200.000

Source: District Records



F
A

IR
II

%
F’

s
S

(I
I(

)O
l.

l)
IS

’I
R

I(
‘I’

S
(’

II
F

D
I

1.
1

0
1

F
iI

)E
R

\1
.

F
IS

A
M

IA
l.

.S
S

IS
T

N
(’

F

F
O

R
T

Il
E

[‘
IS

(’
A

L
,

E
A

R
E

S
If

lN
G

fl
rS

F
30

.
20

11
S

ch
ed

ul
e

A

K
-3

I’
ed

er
0

I
nt

or
/

l’
as

s
I0

ro
i)2

11
(‘

ra
n
t1

jr

l’
ro

rs
r,

i
I

(/
6.

.
5

,a
am

en
)

ot
E

,d
c.

/o
tr

:

Pa
ss

ed
1.’

ra
sa

b
St

at
e

D
ep

ar
im

tt

o(
t3

ri
ca

tt
on

(3
en

N
bo

or
S

a
ti

o
rt

Jo
bs

ba
nd

84
.4

1
((A

7/
1:

1’
)
i

0
/3

(1
)

6.
41

8

7.
I7

6

22
,0

74

6
3
4

63
4

-
5,

05
6

$
(6

9,
77

6>
-

37
2,

91
7

13
44

,6
83

)
-

-
(4

1,
54

21

F
ed

er
a)

P
ro

gr
am

(‘
ar

ry
o

se
r

R
ep

ar
ni

en
t

of
B

al
an

ce
at

Ju
ne

3(
1.

20
11

(‘
l’

D
..
..

o
r

A
w

ar
d

B
al

an
ce

(W
al

ko
ve

r)
(a

sh
B

u
d

g
et

ar
P

ri
or

Y
ea

rs
(A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
l)

ef
cr

rc
d

I)
ue

to

S
um

be
r

(.
ra

n
t

P
er

io
d

A
m

ou
nt

Ju
ne

30
.

20
10

.-
m

o
u
n
t

R
ec

ei
ed

[p
cn

d
it

u
rc

s
B

al
an

ce
s

A
dj

us
tn

ie
nl

R
ec

ei
s

ab
le

)
R

c
en

ue
C

ra
n

to
r

6.
41

81

6.
41

8
—

—
1>

10
0)

—
—

2)
.1

)2
8

I

[5
4
7
)

15
47

>

11
3,

25
6

13
.2

50
1

3.
56

4
3.

56
4

(6
)1

.6
43

)
6)

16
43

17
6.

24
7

19
31

1$
>

6
20

9
I7

.2
99

>

(6
,9

57
6

6,
95

2

(6
9,

14
2)

36
6,

96
)

33
8,

26
5)

-
-

(4
0.

44
6)

-

“
/

04
tO

T
A

-(
[)

‘i
iX

J
L

l)
21

,1
)2

8

‘
.
:

,
‘
,

8
4
7
6
7
5

o
-t

-’
to

S
,5

l.
lO

21
.3

10

:
,
:

.
.,

>
-.

.
.

0
4

3
o

(
°
l-

’”
tS

-3
1
-t

l
96

.2
60

“
‘
/
1
0
’
’

‘
.
.
00

7
04

o
2

s’
to

o
to

0
-3

)-
tI

7
)0

4

1
’

7
‘N

o
\
4
2’
o

)
.
o

0
s,

0
-3

)-
o

8
7
.4

0
6

‘
‘

S
/r

,,
’,

0
4
:’

1
“
-i

-i
to

x
.3

.:
I

19
51

1$
.

‘
r
’
.,
.,

0
)1

7
6

‘.
l.

to
to

S
,3

l,
)I

7
2

9
0

.1
.0

.1
“,

)‘
)‘

L
’S

C
(t

oo
./

84
,1

73
9-

l-
)’

o-
>o

0-
31

-H
’)

6
9
5
2

ho
ao

oo
rn

pa
as

’t
ng

N
ot

es
5

hr
ho

d
ul

os
o
f

[x
pe

nd
>t

ur
es

ii
S

o
ed

o
an

d
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

ar
e

an
in

te
gr

al
pa

rt
((

ft
8i

o
sc

he
du

le



F
A

IR
II

A
E

N
5
(1

1
0
0
1
.

in
s
’r

Iw
’r

S
ch

ed
u

le
B

h
-4

S
C

II
E

D
L

IE
O

F
S

lA
T

E
H

’,
V

’C
i.

l.
A

S
S

IS
IA

M
E

F
O

R
‘I

H
E

F
IS

C
A

L
\

E
A

R
E

N
I)

E
I)

it
N

E
30

,
20

1
I

(
in

)
l’

er
io

il
A

O
r

r-
3

P
ro

g
ra

m
C

ar
ry

n
c
r

o
r

A
u

ar
d

B
al

an
ce

(V
i
al

k
o
v
er

)
k
m

u
u
u
t

Ju
n
e

30
,

2(
11

0
,m

o
u
n
t

‘S
6
4
.3

)4
S

21
)

N
‘.

46
3

rr
r,

4
6

5)

A—
Ar

]
Ir

S—
SA

l..
.4

1)
4
4
)4

5
4

(‘
as

h
ll

n
d
g
ei

ar
v

R
ec

ei
ve

d
E

sp
en

di
tu

re
s

rI
54

4
6
1
.1

)4
)

(2
.8

4
0

)

51
it

(
,i

lo
t

c/
P

r,
ld

Ji
4
)

S
ti

k
I)

rp
u

1
d
u
ra

ti
o
n
:

6)
!

A
r

Ar
1

\
,

A
,

R
AA

A[
A

l’
,

(I
’

‘I
S

I
Al

IA
’,

A
SA

ri
ts

r
sr

i

Sj
r

A
Al

R
c’

Ar
A

)r
,r

d
S

0
Ir

rA
‘I

A
I

A
AA

A

I
Ar

t
r

D
r

A
Ar

A
)r

r
A

I>’
)
D

A
A

r
,A

A
A

1A
A

l!
O

r
A

r
A

I
4

)1
1
,

A
[0

:
lA

ir
A

I)
I

r
A

A
A

l
A

l
A

4)
1

A
r’

Al
A

1
’

II
A

AA
IA

D
r

S A
l)

tl
r
l

r
r
r
(

R
e
p
a

m
en

t
of

B
al

an
ce

at
Ju

n
e

31
1,

2(
11

1
P

ri
o

r
Y

e
a
rs

(c
c
o
u
n
ls

D
ef

er
re

d
D

ue
to

B
al

an
ce

s
-d

jn
st

m
e
n
l

R
ec

ei
v

ab
le

)
R

es
eu

n
e

C
r
a
n
to

r

i
i
i
’
,

li
n
u
s

\
u
r
n
t
,
i

A
A

A
l.r

rA
.,A

A
A

45
A

2
Q

_
r

r
]
]

)
4
.
.
4
A

r
0)
;
r
r
A

A
A

)

,r
l4

rA
[0

r,
rr

..5
S

’A
A

A
A

A
r

Ir
4s

lr
rQ

S.
)

r_
li

I_
’(

lA
A

r
A

)4
4
:r

..
(r

r.
..
(A

Il
5
A

rr
r

r
‘5

r’
4

7

Ir
A

rr
...

3A
.rI

(A

AA
A

r,.
-3

r.r
..

7
.,
A

,O
A

S
A

ll
is

.]
)

.5
4

lA
r

r,-
3A

A
.A

rS

rr
3A

).
.r

A
5

7.
.

-A
l]

Al
A

A
,-3

A
A

-r
rS

A
..
.A

1
r.

lr
A

.r
r,

S
A

A
rA

S

IE
I(

)
io

ta
1

H
i

d
g

tt
u

C
m

u
l

ut
us

s
R

ec
ei

v
ab

le
L

o
p
eu

d
it

u
re

s
D

.1
)5

7
(‘

4,
34

4
28

11
)

4
2
4
,4

3
2
)

.4
8A

4’
6r

8
S

rI
8
4
1

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

5
.0

72
(4

7
7
,7

8
5
)

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

(2
4
,4

7
3
)

-
A

r
.
i
r
7
8

4
7
7
,7

8
5

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

3’
)8

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

-
-

3
rA

5
-

-

-

-

54
7

i’
ll

)

-
r
i)

)

S
A

(4
,1

))
A

S)
(1

,1
1
)

1
’
)
,

(A
l)

)
-

-
47

14

3A
r

4
8
4

(
I 6

,3
42

)
44

83
42

4
I2

2.
11

85
4

0
8
))

)2
.A

r8
)

I
4

4
6
5
7
8

)2
A

r3
11

4$
)

42
63

4)
8)

2.
02

7
.5

[A
r

4
)4

1
1
7
7
2
3
)

(4
.4

9
7

.7
2

3
)

I.
rr

)A
’.

2$
)

41
15

4,
00

4)
)l

A
S

4
rr

A
J
.)

)
2
.5

,,
66

8)
)2

,5
)A

lr
.rr

ir
5

I

S
42

,5
4’

4.
49

T
h

-
5
)4

jr
rS

(4
80

,4
81

1)
-

(3
1
1
$
)

42
)3

)
27

5)

*
)A

rr
l.

0
.

br
jA

A
Ar

;:
IA

C:
s
r

rr
r’

’r
s
A

rv
r’

’r
r:

r:
,r

.
..
,r

r
.,

l,
a)

S
rr

rv
rs

ei
cC

rr
rr

sr
il

)s
sr

rr
A

A
rA

rr
jl

A
rl

A
c

r*A
AA

A[
AA

CA
)

rr
rr

fI
rc

D
s)

rA
c.

A
’’

;b
ch

a)
t



l0i
BOARD OF EDUCATION

K-5
FAIR HAVEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE I: General

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance present the activity of all federal and statefinancial assistance programs of the Board of Education, Fair Haven School District. The Board ofEducation is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board’s general-purpose financial statements. All federalfinancial assistance receied directly from federal agencies. as ell as federal financial assistance passedthrough other government agencies is included on the schedule of federal financial assistance.

NOTE 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis ofaccounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented usingthe accrual basis of accounting. Programs recorded in the food service fund include the National SchoolLunch Program. the School Breakfast Program, the U.S.D.A Commodities Program and the Special MilkProgram. These bases of accounting are described in the Note 1(C) to the Board’s general-purposefinancial statements.

NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements

The general-purpose financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on aGAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fundand special reenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue ispermitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis withthe exception of the revenue recognition of the last stale aid pay ment iii the current budget year, which ismandated pursuant to P.L. 2003. c.97.(A352 I). For GAAP purposes. that pa ment is not recognizeduntil the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid pament inthe subsequent sear. The special re enue fund s presented in the aecompan ing schedules on the grantaccounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes therelated revenues. whereas the (iAAP basis does not.



102.
NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)

Debt
Service Food

General Fund Fund Service Total
State Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
“Revenues” from the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance $ 477.785 2.023 681 480.489

Difference — Budget to “GAAP”
Grant Accounting Budgetan

Basis Differs from GAAP
in that Encumbrances are
Recognized as Expenditures
and the Related Revenue
is Recognized

On Behalf Payments
Recognized for GAAP
Statements but Not
Included in the Schedule
of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance 403.435 403.435

The Last State Aid Payment
Is Recognized as Revenue
for Budgetary Purposes.
and Differs from GAAP
Which does not Recognize
This Revenue Until the
Subsequent Year When the
State Recognizes the Related
Expense (GASB 33) 62,746 62.746

Total State Revenue as Reported
on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances $ 943966 2.023 681 946,670



NOTE 3: Relationship to General Purpose Financial Statements (Continued)

Special
Revenue Food

General Fund Fund Service TotaL

Federal Assistance
Actual Amounts (Budgetary)
Revenues’ from the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal
Awards $ 338,265 6,418 344.683

Difference — Budget to “GAAP”
Grant Accounting Budgetary
Basis Differs from GAAP in that
Encumbrances are Recognized as
Expenditures, and the Related
Revenue is Recognized

Total Federal Revenue as
Reported on the Statement
of Revenue. Expenditures.
and Changes in Fund
Balances

$ 338.265 6,418 344,683

NOTE 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree viih the amounts reported in the relatedfederal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: Other

TPAF Social Securit Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for theemployer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the sear ended June 30. 2011.

No FE 6: 4jstmcnts

flie adjustment on Schedule B s a prtor ear adj ustment.


